May Meeting, 1990

advisory committee. Her most outstanding community contribution was her active participation in the development of a first-class arboretum at the For-Mar Nature Preserve.

In recognition of her long-standing efforts to encourage undergraduate student research, Professor Taylor's colleagues are honoring her by making contributions in her name to the Murchie Memorial Fund to support undergraduate student research. She will be missed and is to be commended for her outstanding commitment to the University of Michigan-Flint.

The Regents now salute this distinguished faculty member for her dedicated service by naming Jane Taylor Professor Emeritus of Biology.

Abe Torchinsky, professor of music (tuba), will retire from active faculty status on May 31, 1990.

Professor Torchinsky graduated from the Curtis Institute of Music in Philadelphia in 1941, after which he launched a performance career as an ensemble tubist of wide-ranging variety and of enviable accomplishment. After having been a member of several metropolitan orchestras, in 1946, Professor Torchinsky joined the new orchestra of the National Broadcasting Corporation, conducted by Arturo Toscanini. The NBC Symphony Orchestra was considered to be among the top virtuoso orchestras in the world; it made countless broadcasts and recordings for RCA Victor under its venerable conductor, including the first telecast of a symphonic concert. Professor Torchinsky joined the Philadelphia Orchestra in 1949, again performing and recording under legendary conductors. He remained with the Philadelphia Orchestra until joining the University of Michigan faculty in 1972 as a professor of music.

With the exceptional wealth of rich orchestral experience he brought to the faculty, Professor Torchinsky was responsible for the training of low brass students in Michigan ensembles for seventeen years. Graduates from his classes now hold prominent orchestral posts throughout the United States.

The Regents now salute this distinguished faculty member by naming Abe Torchinsky Professor Emeritus of Music.

Andrew S. Watson, M.D., professor of law in the Law School and professor of psychiatry in the Medical School, will retire from active faculty status on May 31, 1990, after a distinguished career of teaching and research.

Born in Highland Park, Michigan, Dr. Watson received his B.S. degree from the University of Michigan in 1942. Following service in the United States Army, he received his M.D. degree from Temple University School of Medicine in 1950 and his M.S. degree in medicine from Temple in 1954. Dr. Watson taught at the University of Pennsylvania from 1955-59, when he came to the University of Michigan as an assistant professor of psychiatry and assistant professor of law. He was promoted to associate professor in 1962 and professor in 1966.

In the Department of Psychiatry, Dr. Watson taught medical students and psychiatric residents, served as a supervisor of family conjoint therapy and as a seminar leader for residents in forensic psychiatry, and was one of the most active faculty members in the community psychiatry program. His research focused on such areas as techniques for simultaneous treatment of marital partners and the psychodynamics and community management of the battered child syndrome.

In the Law School, Dr. Watson taught a variety of traditional courses, regularly taught a course in law and psychiatry, participated regularly in teaching the negotiation seminar, and worked actively in clinical teaching. He did important work on the law school teaching process, with particular emphasis on exploring the
psychological dimension of lawyer-client relations in the law school clinics. In his scholarship, Dr. Watson has been a true pioneer in bringing together the fields of law and psychiatry; his *Psychiatry for Lawyers* has been a standard text for many years. His work in law and psychiatry was recognized in 1978 when he received the Isaac Ray Award from the American Psychiatric Association for "outstanding contributions to the relationship between law and psychiatry," and again in 1989 when he received the Seymour Pollack Distinguished Achievement Award from the American Academy of Psychiatry and Law.

Both as a teacher and a colleague, Dr. Watson enjoyed enormous success, not only in bringing psychiatry into the Law School but also in paving the way for the widespread introduction of many other disciplines into the study of law. More than most, he taught not only his students, but also other members of his faculty.

The Regents now salute this accomplished scholar and educator for his distinguished service by naming Andrew S. Watson Professor Emeritus of Law and Professor Emeritus of Psychiatry.

**James H. Wolter**, associate professor of business administration in the School of Management at the University of Michigan-Flint, will retire from active faculty status on May 31, 1990.

Professor Wolter earned his B.S. degree in agriculture from the University of Illinois in 1949. He served in the U.S. Army from 1951-1953, during the Korean War. He then went to Indiana University, where he earned his M.B.A. degree in management in 1955 and D.B.A. degree in marketing in 1960. He joined the faculty of the University of Michigan-Flint in 1958 as a lecturer; he was promoted to assistant professor in 1960 and to associate professor in 1966.

During his 32 years of service on the University of Michigan-Flint campus, Professor Wolter has taught approximately 250 sections of more than 16 different courses in marketing, management, and quantitative methods, with an estimated 8,000 enrollments by over 3,000 different students. Until 1975, every student who majored in business administration took three required courses taught by Professor Wolter, and many took additional elective ones. He also developed several new courses for the curriculum, including specialty courses in automotive marketing and new product development. Professor Wolter has served as faculty advisor for over 1,000 students, and then continued to play an active liaison role with them after they became alumni.

Professor Wolter has contributed extensively in the service area, both on campus and in the Flint community. He has served on almost every campus committee, and has chaired more than 30 of them. An active supporter of student organizations, he has served as faculty advisor for the business, marketing, folk music, and ski clubs. He is a member of more than 10 professional organizations and has performed committee service for several local chapters of marketing associations. He is a member of Beta Gamma Sigma and has been listed in *Who's Who in the Midwest* and *Who's Who in America*.

The Regents now salute this faculty member for his dedicated service to the University of Michigan-Flint by naming James H. Wolter Associate Professor Emeritus of Business Administration.

**Memorials**

Provost Vest reported the death of one faculty member. On a motion by Regent Power, seconded by Regent Waters, the Regents voted unanimously to adopt the following memorial statement: